

## Wonhyuk LIM

Vice President and Director  
Center for Regulatory Studies  
Korea Development Institute

Tel.: +82-2-958-4206  
P.O. Box 113, Cheongryang  
Seoul 130-012, Korea

Fax: +82-2-958-4090  
e-mail: wlim@kdi.re.kr

Wonhyuk Lim is Vice President and Executive Director, Center for Regulatory Studies, at the Korea Development Institute (KDI). He also serves as Director, Department of Competition Policy. Since he joined KDI in 1996, his research has focused on state-owned enterprises and family-based business groups (*chaebol*). He has also written extensively on development issues, in conjunction with policy consultation projects under Korea's Knowledge Sharing Program (KSP). He received a Presidential order from the Dominican Republic for his work. After the 2002 Presidential Election in Korea, he worked for the Presidential Transition Committee and the Presidential Committee on Northeast Asia and helped to set policy directions for the restructuring of the electricity and gas sector and for Northeast Asian energy cooperation. Dr. Lim was also at Brookings as a CNAPS Fellow for 2005-06, and worked as a consultant for the World Bank and the Asian Development Bank Institute (ADBI). In 2010, he helped to formulate the G20 Seoul Development Consensus for Shared Growth. His recent publications include *The Korean Economy: From a Miraculous Past to a Sustainable Future* (Harvard, forthcoming, co-authored), *Korea's Global Leadership* (Kyobo, 2012, ed., in Korean), "Chaebol and Industrial Policy in Korea" (*Asian Economic Policy Review*, 2012), "Joint Discovery and Upgrading of Comparative Advantage: Lessons from Korea's Development Experience" (World Bank, 2011) and *Global Leadership in Transition: Making the G20 More Effective and Responsive* (Brookings and KDI, 2011, co-edited with Colin Bradford). He received a B.A.S. in Physics and History and a Ph.D. in Economics from Stanford University.

**Date of Birth**      January 15, 1966

**Citizenship**      Republic of Korea (South Korea)

### **Education**

1988-1993      Ph.D. (Economics), Stanford University

1984-1988      B.A.S. (Physics and History) with Honors and Distinction, Stanford University  
Phi Beta Kappa (1987)

### **Employment**

1996-Present      Senior Fellow, Korea Development Institute (KDI)

2005-Present      Member, Advisory Council for the Korea Economic Institute of America (KEI)

2007-2008      Member, Advisory Committee, Board of Audit and Inspection

2006-2007      Consultant, World Bank

2006-2007	Nonresident Fellow, Brookings Institution
2005-2006	CNAPS Fellow, Brookings Institution
2005-2007	Member, Advisory Council on Democratic and Peaceful Unification
2004-2005	Member, Advisory Committee on Northeast Asia Economic Cooperation, Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade
2003-2004	Member, Policy Evaluation Committee for the Fair Trade Commission
2003	Advisor, Presidential Committee on Northeast Asia
2003	Advisor, First Economic Subcommittee, Presidential Transition Committee
2002-2003	Consultant, World Bank
2000-2002	Consultant, Asian Development Bank Institute (ADBI)
1993-1996	Professor, Korea Military Academy

## **Publications**

Barry Eichengreen, Wonhyuk Lim, Yung Chul Park, and Dwight Perkins, *The Korean Economy: From a Miraculous Past to a Sustainable Future* (Cambridge: Harvard University Press, forthcoming).

Colin I. Bradford and Wonhyuk Lim, "Global Rebalancing and Systemic Risk Assessment: The G-20 and the International Monetary Fund," in Kemal Derviş and Peter Drysdale, eds., *The G-20 Summit at Five: Time for Strategic Leadership*, pp.119-143 (Washington, DC: Brookings Institution Press, 2014).

Hyungna Oh and Wonhyuk Lim, eds., *Climate Change: Impacts and Adaptation Strategies* (Seoul: KDI, 2013) [in Korean].

Wonhyuk Lim, Richard Carey, and Michael Clark, "Connecting up Platforms and Processes for Global Development," Paper Commissioned by the ROK Ministry of Foreign Affairs (2013).

Wonhyuk Lim et al., *Improving Market Structure and Promoting Competition: Beyond Monopoly Regulation* (Seoul: KDI, 2012) [in Korean].

(with Nicole Bates-Eamer, Barry Carin, and Minha Lee), *Post-2015 Development Agenda: Goals, Targets and Indicators: Special Report* (Waterloo and Seoul: CIGI and KDI, 2012).

Wonhyuk Lim et al., *Korea's Global Leadership* (Seoul: Kyobo Books, 2012) [in Korean].

"Chaebol and Industrial Policy in Korea," *Asian Economic Policy Review* (2012) 7: 69-86.

- “Joint Discovery and Upgrading of Comparative Advantage: Lessons from Korea’s Development Experience,” in *Postcrisis Growth and Development: A Development Agenda for the G-20*, ed. by Shahrokh Fardoust, Yongbeom Kim, and Claudia Sepulveda (Washington, DC: The World Bank, 2011), pp.173-226.
- Wonhyuk Lim et al., *Using Knowledge Exchange for Capacity Development: What Works in Global Practice?* (Washington, DC: World Bank, 2011).
- Wonhyuk Lim et al., *Major Issues and Policy Challenges for the G20 Cannes Summit* (Seoul: KDI, 2011).
- (with Colin I. Bradford, ed.), *Global Leadership in Transition* (Washington, DC: Brookings, 2011).
- (with Francoise Nicolas), "The G20 from Seoul to Cannes: Towards a global governance committee" (Seoul and Paris: KDI and Ifri, 2011).
- “Green Growth as a Panacea?: The Politics and Economics of Climate Change in South Korea,” in *Green Dragons: The Politics of Climate Change in Asia*, ed. by Michael J. Green and Charles W. Freeman (Washington, DC: CSIS, 2010), pp.20-35.
- (with Colin I. Bradford, ed.), *Toward the Consolidation of the G20: From Crisis Committee to Global Steering Committee* (Seoul: KDI and Brookings, 2010).
- (with L. Alan Winters, Lucia Hanmer, and Sidney Augustin), “Economic Growth in Low Income Countries: How the G20 Can Help to Raise and Sustain It,” KDI Working Paper 2010-01 (Seoul: KDI, 2010).
- Wonhyuk Lim et al., *Industrial-Innovative Development Plan of Kazakhstan* (Seoul: Ministry of Strategy and Finance and Korea Development Institute, 2010).
- Wonhyuk Lim et al., *Export Development for the Dominican Republic* (Seoul: Ministry of Strategy and Finance and Korea Development Institute, 2009).
- “Regional Multilateralism in Asia and the Korean Question,” in *Asia's New Multilateralism: Cooperation, Competition, and the Search for Community*, ed. by Michael J. Green and Bates Gill (New York: Columbia University Press, 2009), pp.78-102.
- (with Youngsun Koh et al.), *Economic Crisis: 10 Years After* (Seoul: KDI, 2007) [in Korean].
- "Inter-Korean Economic Cooperation at a Crossroads," in *Dynamic Forces on the Korean Peninsula: Strategic and Economic Implications* (Washington, DC: Korea Economic Institute, 2007), pp.139-164[<http://keia.org/2-Publications/2-3-Monograph/Monograph2007/12.Lim.pdf>].
- (with Sunhyuk Kim), "How to Deal with South Korea," *The Washington Quarterly* 30:2 (Spring 2007), pp.71-82 [[http://www.twq.com/07spring/docs/07spring\\_kim-lim.pdf](http://www.twq.com/07spring/docs/07spring_kim-lim.pdf)].
- “Economic Integration and Reconciliation in Northeast Asia: Possibilities and Limitations,” in *Rethinking Historical Injustice in Northeast Asia*, ed. by Gi-Wook Shin, Soon-Won Park, and Daing Yang (New York: Routledge, 2007), pp.235-253.

(with Kyung-Mook Lim), "Investment Bust in Post-crisis Korea: Fact or Fiction?" *Asian Economic Papers* 5:3 (2006), pp.1-18.

"KORUS FTA: A Mysterious Beginning and an Uncertain Future," *Asian Perspective* 30:4 (2006), pp.175-187.

(with Ramon Torrent, ed.), *Multilateral and Regional Frameworks for Globalization: WTO and Free Trade Agreements* (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 2006).

(with Joon-Ho Hahm), "Turning a Crisis into an Opportunity: The Political Economy of Korea's Financial Sector Reform," ed. by Jongryn Mo and Daniel I. Okimoto, *From Crisis to Opportunity: Financial Globalization and East Asian Capitalism* (Stanford: Shorenstein APARC, 2006), pp.85-121.

(with Keun Wook Paik), "Energy Demand Projections and Supply Options for the DPRK," in *Energy Scenarios for the DPRK: Report of the Working Group Convened by the United Nations* (New York: University for Peace, 2005).

"North Korea's Economic Futures: Internal and External Dimensions," in *Korea: The East Asian Pivot*, ed. by Jonathan D. Pollack (Newport, RI: Naval War College Press, 2004), pp.171-195.

*Electric Power Sector Restructuring: Major Issues and Policy Options* (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 2004) [in Korean].

*Public Enterprise Reform and Privatization in Korea: Lessons for Developing Countries* (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 2003).

"Path Dependence in Action: The Adoption and Persistence of the Korean Model of Economic Development," in *History Matters: Essays on Economic Growth, Technology, and Demographic Change*, ed. by Timothy W. Guinnane et al. (Stanford: Stanford University Press, 2003), pp.142-162.

(with Jongryn Mo) "The Dynamics of Post-Crisis Economic Reform in Korea" (Tokyo: Asian Development Bank Institute, 2003).

(with Stephan Haggard and Euisung Kim, ed.) *Economic Crisis and Corporate Restructuring in Korea: Reforming the Chaebol* (Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2003).

"Korea: Corporate Vulnerabilities and Restructuring," World Bank Consultant Report, 2002.

*A Study on Unfair Trade Practices* (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 2002) [in Korean].

"Real Name Financial Transaction System," in *Case Studies on Korea's Economic Reform* ed. by Jongryn Mo et al. (Seoul: Orum, 2002), pp.383-426 [in Korean].

"The Evolution of Korea's Development Paradigm: Old Legacies and Emerging Trends in the Post-Crisis Era" (Tokyo: Asian Development Bank Institute, 2001).

*The Origin and Evolution of the Korean Economic System* (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 2000).

- (with Il-Dong Koh et al.) *Major Issues in Korea-China-Japan Economic Cooperation* (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 2000) [in Korean].
- "The Asian Values Debate Revisited: Positive and Normative Dimensions," *Korea Journal*, Vol. 40, No. 2, Summer 2000, pp. 365-384.
- (with Dong-Se Cha) "In Search of a New Capitalist Spirit for the Korean Economy," in *An Agenda for Economic Reform in Korea: International Perspectives*, ed. by Kenneth Judd and Young-Ki Lee (Stanford: Hoover Press, 2000), pp.449-489.
- (with Il-Chong Nam and Hyecheon Lee) *Privatization and CHP Industry* (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 1999) [in Korean].
- "Preparing for Unification: The Decline of the North Korean Economy and Challenges for North Korea Policy," in *1999 in Search of Hope for the Nation* (Seoul: Jungto Press, 1999), pp.87-141 [in Korean].
- (with Jin Park and Yoo-Soo Lee) *North Korea Policy and Inter-Korean Economic Cooperation in Transition* (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 1998) [in Korean].
- "A Case Study on the Transition of Socialist Countries: Romania" (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 1998) [in Korean].
- "North Korea's Food Crisis," *Korea and World Affairs*, Vol. 21, No. 4, Winter 1997, pp.568-585.
- (with Sukwhan Ahn) "The Role of Trust in Rational Cooperation: Confidence-Building Between North and South Korea," *KDI Journal of Economic Policy*, Vol. 19, No. 1, 1997, pp.105-141 [in Korean].
- "Economic Integration of North and South Korea," paper presented at the America Economic Association Conference, New Orleans, January 6, 1997.